
Municipal Services Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor4:30 PMMonday, September 25, 2023

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

23-1127 Meeting minutes from September 11, 2023

09-11-23 Meeting Minutes.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

23-1128 Resolution #10-2-22, Alternate Lawe Street Truck Route.

2023.09.20_MSC Lawe Street Truck Route Memo.pdf

Lawe Street Attachments.pdf

Attachments:

23-1129 Approve parking restriction change on the 700 block of E. Arnold Street.  

Follow up to Six-Month Evaluation Period.

Arnold St (post 6-month trial).pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 9/21/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23301
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3e1287a-f85a-4550-9bda-243e484ba065.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23302
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1af290b-4cd9-4aed-90cd-7059fa233205.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58dc1bf5-17b5-4fd8-baa4-ce66ad833364.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23303
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e69057b6-8faa-4db2-9b9a-1e598af01aab.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Municipal Services Committee

4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, September 11, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Pledge of Allegiance2.

Roll call of membership3.

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the  be approved. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Van Zeeland, Meltzer and Siebers3 - 

Absent: Alfheim and Doran2 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting4.

23-1088 Minutes from August 21, 2023

 

08-21-23 Meeting Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Public Hearing/Appearances5.

Action Items6.

23-1087 Request from The Boldt Company for a permanent street occupancy 

permit for the Fox Commons City Center Plaza construction site 

perimeter fencing and staging on Oneida Street south of Washington 

Street (from E Washington Street to N. Appleton Street) for a period 

ending on December 31, 2023. 

 

Boldt City Center Perm Road Closure Permit.pdfAttachments:

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the Report Action Item be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Van Zeeland, Meltzer and Siebers3 - 

Absent: Alfheim and Doran2 - 

Page 1City of Appleton



September 11, 2023Municipal Services Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

Information Items7.

23-1089 Inspection Division Permit Summary Comparison Report for August 

2023.  

 

Permit YTD Summary 8.31.23.pdfAttachments:

23-1090 Bird E-Scooter Monthly Report - August 2023.  

 

Appleton Bird August 2023 Report.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment8.

Siebers moved, seconded by Meltzer, that the  be adjourned. Roll Call. Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Van Zeeland, Meltzer and Siebers3 - 

Absent: Alfheim and Doran2 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



Page 1 of 4 

 
 
To: Municipal Services Committee 
From: Danielle Block, Director of Public Works 
Date: September 20, 2023 
Re: Staff Report – Resolution #10-R-22 Lawe Street Truck Route Analysis 
 
Department of Public Works and Community and Economic Development staff have reviewed and discussed the 
various elements included in Resolution #10-R-22 submitted by Alderperson Meltzer, District 2 and Alderperson 
Del Toro, District 4.  A copy of the Resolution is included in the attachments (Exhibit 1). 
 
Lawe Street from Wisconsin Avenue to College Avenue is proposed to be reconstructed in 2026, utility 
reconstruction in 2025.  During the initial scoping discussions of the upcoming Lawe Street reconstruction project, 
the exploration of removing the Truck Route designation from Lawe Street between College Avenue and Hancock 
Street occurred.  Further discussion on potential alternate routes also occurred.  The future design of Lawe Street is 
being completed by Ayres Associates, an external engineering consultant.  This design work and future 
construction work is being completed under the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) STP-Urban 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) program.  Under this program, the project is being funded by the Federal, State 
and local governments through a State Municipal Agreement.  A copy of the agreement is included (Exhibit 2). 
 
Preliminary study of the corridor included a review of existing road and traffic conditions, proposed improvement 
requirements under WisDOT STP-Urban BIL program, City-wide truck route network, community listening 
session specific to the truck route, coordination with industrial and commercial carriers, and long-range City 
comprehensive plans. 
 
Existing Roadway Conditions   

• Collector Street and Designated Truck Route 
• Roadway Typical Section 

o 60-ft right of way 
o 32-ft total roadway width 

 11-ft travel lanes 
 5-ft paved shoulder and curb & gutter 
 8.5-ft grass terraces 
 5-ft sidewalks 

o No Parking 
o No Bike Lanes 

• Pavement Condition 
o Poor 

• Tree Canopy Survey 
o 78 total trees 
o Approximately 47% may be removed due to species (Ash), condition (poor) or location (under 

power lines).  Further design details are required to finalize the required tree removals. 
o Street Terrace Tree plantings will be part of the reconstruction project once the pavement and 

restoration are complete. 
  

“. . .   meeting community needs . . .  enhancing quality of life.”  
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL  (920) 832-6474 



Page 2 of 4 

Existing Traffic Conditions 
• Speed 

o Posted 25 mph. 
o Speed study indicated the 85th percentile speed is 30 mph.  Which is below the citywide average for 

Collectors. 
• ADT (Average Daily Traffic): 6,000 - 8,300, depending on the block. 
• Truck %’s (≥15,000 GVW) 

o 3.1% Large Trucks or 279/day 
• Crash History: 38 reportable crashes 2018-2022 
• School Zone: Crossing at North St – Edison Elementary School 

 
Proposed Improvement Requirements 

• 32-ft roadway width (no widening) 
o 10-ft travel lanes 
o 6-ft bike lanes 
o 8.5-ft grass terraces 
o 5-ft sidewalks 

• Pedestrian Accommodations and Traffic Calming 
o Currently investigating the feasibility of developing pedestrian enhancement features at select 

intersections.  Design details and cost analysis pending. 
 Features could include side street curb extensions, median islands for refuge, etc. 

o Traffic Calming features being considered include modifications to the width of the roadway, 
signage, lighting, etc.  These features do not include vertical installations (i.e., raised intersections 
or crosswalks) in order to minimize traffic noise from vibrations. 

• Placemaking Opportunities 
o Pending funding resources and design within parameters of City Streetscape Guidelines: 

 Stamped and Colored Concrete 
 Decorative Lighting 
 Bus Stop Enhancements 

 
Lawe Street Truck Route Community Listening Session Feedback 

• Listening Session was held on the evening of August 2, 2023.  Invitations were sent to residents and 
businesses along the project corridor.  The goal of the listening session was to gather feedback specifically 
related to the truck route.  Public Works provided a brief project update and Community Development 
facilitated an interactive discussion to generate input from residents and businesses along the project 
corridor. 

• A summary of the listening session comments is attached (Exhibit 3). 
 
Industrial and Commercial Carrier Coordination 

• Number of Trips and Destination 
o Appvion currently takes approximately 16 round trips per day.  32 total trips per day along Lawe 

Street. 
o The 32 trips currently take place any time of day as ordering is placed by the distribution center.  

Trips also occur all days of the week, not just weekdays. 
o Appvion has been utilizing the Kensington Distribution Center for over 30 years, with a similar 

trucking pattern. 
• Additional Mileage and Environmental Impacts 

o To reroute Appvion truck traffic along HWY 441, the mileage would increase by at least 50%.  
This would create an increase in CO2 emissions of 109 metric tons per year.  This is an estimate 
related to Appvion trucks only.  Other industries and trucking traffic would likely have increases as 
well. 

o See the attached Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator for a description of the CO2 emissions 
impact (Exhibit 4). 

  



Page 3 of 4 

• Alternative Route – HWY 441 Hazards 
o Industry has expressed concerns related to the use of HWY 441 via Northland Avenue.  The 

entrance ramp to the highway is uphill, making it difficult to enter and merge with highway traffic.  
Further, the reverse is true when exiting HWY 441 the downward incline onto College Avenue is 
also not ideal for truck traffic.   

o The industry expressed the local truck route being preferred from a driver and traffic safety 
standpoint based on the geometry of HWY 441. 

• Compromise 
o During the month of August, leadership from Appvion approached City staff with a potential 

compromise.  The compromise would restrict industrial and commercial truck traffic from utilizing 
the Lawe Street corridor from 10pm to 5am daily.  This compromise would apply to the entirety of 
Lawe Street from Wisconsin Avenue south to College Avenue.  Offering a positive benefit to those 
residents located north of Hancock Street that, under the Resolution language, would still have a 
Truck Route designation. 

o A letter regarding this topic is included (Exhibit 5). 
 
Truck Route Network 

• The existing City Truck Route Network map is attached (Exhibit 6). 
• Alternative Route Discussion 

o Staff does not recommend a new alternative truck route to replace Lawe Street. 
 Efficiency and Cost – an alternative truck route could disrupt the efficiency of our 

transportation system, leading to increased travel time, congestion and additional fuel 
costs. 

 Safety Concerns – the existing truck route network has been designed with safety in mind 
and appropriate truck turning accommodations. 

 Community Impact – implementation of an alternative route could have a negative impact 
on a corridor that historically has not experienced measurable trucking volumes. 

 Environmental Considerations – a modification to the truck route will likely have increased 
emission levels and travel time. 

o Based on these factors, staff does not recommend any alternative truck routes. 
 
City of Appleton Long Range Plan 
It is worth noting the discussion of Truck Routes and Transportation planning within the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan.  The City of Appleton has designated truck routes to discourage heavy vehicle traffic on neighborhood streets 
and other roads where these vehicles may present conflicts.  In general, these include state and county trunk 
highways passing through the city, along with local streets in industrial districts or business parks in the community 
(COA Comp Plan 2010-2030, pg. 77).  Lawe Street is a designated Collector Street.  The Future Land Use Map 
within the Comprehensive Plan indicates most of the area north of Atlantic Street as future multi-family residential, 
mixed use, commercial, and industrial land use.   
 
Truck Route Summary 
The specific authority of a city to regulate heavy traffic is contained within Wis. Stat. 349.17 and City Municipal 
Code Sec. 19-136.  Heavy trucks/commercial vehicles equal to or over 15,000 pounds shall drive on marked truck 
routes.  Heavy trucks are allowed to deviate from the marked truck routes for the purpose of making pickups or 
deliveries as long as they leave and re-enter the designated route at points closest to their immediate destinations.  
There are exemptions to the types of trucks (i.e., municipal vehicles, emergency vehicles, buses). 
 
For future consideration by the Committee, based on the analysis completed, staff does not recommend the removal 
of the Lawe Street Truck Route designation.  This north-south connection is a historic and critical truck route to 
sustain the viability of strong economic anchors at the northern end of the project limits.  Appvion alone has 350 
employees to operate and manage their Appleton location.  This industry has been a stable business in the Appleton 
community for over 115 years.   
 
Staff does not recommend the designation of an alternative route in lieu of Lawe Street.  Richmond Street and 
HWY 441 are the closest truck routes if Lawe Street is eliminated. 
 



Page 4 of 4 

Staff anticipates recommending a compromise to the operational hours of the Lawe Street truck route.  Based on 
feedback from industry, staff anticipates introducing an agreement limiting the hours truck travel along the entirety 
of Lawe Street from Wisconsin Avenue to College Avenue from 5am to 10pm.  Trucks would not be scheduled to 
travel along Lawe Street from 10pm to 5am.  This compromise could be memorialized in a Memorandum of 
Understanding between the industries and the City of Appleton at a subsequent meeting.  
 
10-R-22 Recommendation 
The pertinent portion of the Resolution asked “... that when the redesign comes up prior to Lawe Street’s 
reconstruction, staff will explore removing the Truck Route designation from Lawe Street between College Avenue 
and Hancock Street and finding an alternate route for truck traffic to travel north and south.” 
 
This resolution is referred to Council via the Municipal Services Committee.  Based on the fact that Staff has 
explored the designation and alternate routes and presented its recommendation through this Memo, Staff’s 
recommendation is to approve the resolution at this time. 



#10-R-22 
Alternate Lawe Street Truck Route 

Date: August 3, 2022 
Submitted By: Ald. Meltzer, District 2, & Ald. Del Toro, District 4 
Referred To: Department of Public Works 

Whereas large commercial trucks on Lawe Street have long been a problem for the 
neighborhood both as a nuisance and a safety issue, causing damage to road 
conditions and home infrastructure; and 

Whereas amenities, such as bike lanes, and safe walkable street crossings add value to 
neighborhoods, but inner city truck routes, impose a burden on neighborhoods; and 

Whereas Lawe Street is scheduled for surface reconstruction in 2025, underground 
work in 2024, and design and planning 2023; and 

Whereas large commercial truck traffic will have to be re-routed during the 
reconstruction work on Lawe Street, this provides an opportunity to make permanent 
changes as well as explore options to save on cost of materials; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that when the redesign comes up prior to Lawe 
Street’s reconstruction, staff will explore removing the Truck Route designation from 
Lawe Street between College Avenue and Hancock Street, and finding an alternate 
route for truck traffic to travel north and south. 

Exhibit 1



Exhibit 2



C:\Box\DTSD\DTSD-NER\PLN\LocalProgram\STP-Urban\SMA    Page 2 of 8        ID 4984-24-74/75 NE Region 

The Municipality agrees to the following BIL 2023-2026 Urbanized Area project funding conditions: 

Project ID 4984-24-74 design costs are funded with up to 80% federal funding up to a funding limit of   $364,907. 
The Municipality agrees to provide the remaining 20% and any funds in excess of the $364,907 federal funding 
limit. 

Non-participating design costs which include real estate, railroad and compensable utility costs are 100% the 
responsibility of the Municipality. Any work performed by the Municipality prior to federal authorization is not 
eligible for federal funding. The Municipality will be notified by the State that the project is authorized and 
available for charging. 

Project ID 4984-24-75 construction costs are funded with up to 80% federal funding up to a funding limit of 
$2,454,193. The Municipality agrees to provide the remaining 20% and any funds in excess of the $2,454,193 
federal funding limit. 

Non-participating construction costs which include, but is not limited to, relocation/adjustments to water and 
sanitary sewer facilities and maintenance and repair of haul roads are 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. 
Any work performed by the Municipality prior to federal authorization is not eligible for federal funding. The 
Municipality will be notified by the State that the project is authorized and available for charging. 

This project is currently scheduled in State Fiscal Year 2026.  Sunset date: June 30, 2031. 

Sunset Date is determined based on the date a project is scheduled to be authorized. Sunset date is calculated 
as six years from the beginning of the state fiscal year (SFY) in which a project is initially scheduled.   

Extensions may be available upon approval of a written request by or on behalf of the Municipality to State. The 
written request shall explain the reasons for project implementation delay and revised timeline for project 
completion. 

The dollar amounts shown in the Summary of Costs Table below are estimates. The final Municipal share is 
dependent on the final federal participation, and actual costs will be used in the final division of cost for billing 
and reimbursement. In no event shall federal or State funding exceed the estimate of $2,819,100 in the Summary 
of Costs Table, unless such increase is approved in writing by the State through the State’s Change 
Management Policy prior to the Municipality incurring the increased costs.  

    SUMMARY OF COSTS 

PHASE Total Est. 
Project Cost 

Federal / 
State Funds % Municipal 

Funds % 

ID 4984-24-74 
Design $ 439,934 $ 351,947 80%* $ 87,987 20% + BAL 
State Review  $ 16,200 $ 12,960 80%* $ 3,240 20% + BAL 

Project total $ 456,134 $ 364,907 $ 91,227 

ID 4984-24-75 
Participating Construction $ 3,297,087 $ 2,168,083 80%* $ 1,129,004 20% + BAL 
Construction Engineering $ 414,698 $ 272,695 80%* $ 142,003 20% + BAL 
Non-Participating Construction $ 20,500 0% $ 20,500 100% 
State Review $ 20,400 $ 13,415 80%* $ 6,985 20% + BAL 

Project total $ 3,752,685 $ 2,454,193 $ 1,298,492 

Total Est. Cost Distribution $ 4,208,819 $ 2,819,100  $ 1,389,719 
*Design ID 4984-24-74 federal/state funding is limited to $ 364,907
*Construction ID 4984-24-75 federal/state funding is limited to $ 2,454,193



NE Region Systems, Planning, and Operations Manager 08/24/2023













Lawe Street Truck Route Community Listening Session 
August 2, 2023 5-6pm 

Session Summary 

• Presentation by Public Works staff, then a workshop lead by Community Development
staff.

• Map of the corridor was available to enter comments and locate corridor comments and
concerns.

• Two questions were posed to the attendees:

o What about the truck route impacts you the most?
 Excessive noise and vibration in homes.  Concerned with foundation and

windows.
 Experience excessive speeding.
 Difficulty crossing the streets, including school crossing safety.
 Deteriorating road conditions.
 Industry has concerns that rerouting will increase travel times, fuel usage

and negatively affect business operations.
 Industry has concerns regarding HWY 441, the ability to merge uphill and

enter traffic safely.  The interchange at College Avenue is difficult for
trucks to maneuver.

 Dirt and dust caused by trucks along the corridor.
 Maintaining the character of the neighborhood and view the trucks as

determinantal to the character.
 Concerns regarding potential widening of the roadway, if needed would

impact the trees.
 Overall perception of a negative impact on property value.

o Are there features that could mitigate your concerns about the truck route?
 Installation of traffic control at intersections: stop signs, pedestrian

crossing signs and/or lights, etc.
 Rerouting of the truck traffic.
 Do not widen the street.
 No bike lanes.
 Different speed limits for trucks.
 Reinforced roads.
 Different routes depending on whether or not the truck is loaded.
 Improved railroad crossing.
 Reduced speed limits.
 Enforcement for speed.

Exhibit 3





9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 1/9

109 Metric Tons  of Carbon Dioxide (CO ) equivalent

This is equivalent to greenhouse gas emissions from:

This is equivalent to CO  emissions from:

2

24.3  gasoline-powered passenger
vehicles driven for one year 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#vehicles>

279,427  miles driven by an average
gasoline-powered passenger vehicle 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#miles>

2

12,265  gallons of gasoline consumed 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#gasoline>

Exhibit 4

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#vehicles
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#miles
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#gasoline


9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 2/9

10,707  gallons of diesel consumed 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#diesel>

122,097  pounds of coal burned 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#lbscoal>

1.4  tanker trucks' worth of gasoline
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#tankers>

13.7  homes' energy use for one year
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#houseenergy>

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#diesel
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#lbscoal
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#tankers
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#houseenergy


9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 3/9

21.2  homes' electricity use for one
year  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#houseelec>

0.601  railcars' worth of coal burned 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#railcars>

252  barrels of oil consumed 
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#oil>

5,007  propane cylinders used for home
barbeques  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-

equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#propane>

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#houseelec
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#railcars
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#oil
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#propane


9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 4/9

This is equivalent to greenhouse gas emissions avoided by:

0  coal-fired power plants in one
year  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#coalplant>

0.0003  natural gas-fired power plants in
one year  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-

equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#gasplant>

13,259,048  number of smartphones charged
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#smartphones>

37.7  tons of waste recycled instead of
landfilled  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#coalplant
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#gasplant
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#smartphones
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#recycle


9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 5/9

equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#recycle>

5.4  garbage trucks of waste recycled
instead of landfilled  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-

gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#gtrucks>

4,718  trash bags of waste recycled
instead of landfilled  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-

gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#trash>

0.03  wind turbines running for a year
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#wind>

4,131  incandescent lamps switched to
LEDs  <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#recycle
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#gtrucks
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#trash
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#wind
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#lights


9/8/23, 11:08 AM Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator | US EPA

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator#results 6/9

This is equivalent to carbon sequestered by:

calculator-calculations-and-references#lights>

1,802  tree seedlings grown for 10 years
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#seedlings>

130  acres of U.S. forests in one year
 <https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-

calculator-calculations-and-references#pineforests>

0.723  acres of U.S. forests preserved
from conversion to cropland in one year
<https://epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-

calculations-and-references#deforestation>

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#lights
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#seedlings
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#pineforests
https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gases-equivalencies-calculator-calculations-and-references#deforestation


September 14, 2023 

To:  Danielle Block 

Director of Public Works, City of Appleton 

From: Graeme Hodson 

COO, M2S Group (Appvion, Nekoosa, and Decora�ve Films) 

Dani, 

Thanks again for including us in the Community Listening event on Wednesday August 2nd at 
City Hall.  It was a great opportunity to understand the construc�on and upgrade plans for Lawe 
Street and more importantly hear the concerns and feedback of our local residents regarding 
the “truck route” designa�on. 

Appvion has been manufacturing here in Appleton for over 115 years and as part of our 
opera�ons we have been u�lizing WSI warehousing in the Radio Road/College Avenue vicinity 
for more than 30 years.  Given our limited warehousing in our manufacturing buildings around 
Meade Street and Wisconsin Avenue, we store the majority or our incoming raw materials and 
outgoing finished goods in offsite warehousing and use VS Midwest to shutle materials back 
and forth.  The most direct and cost-effec�ve truck route u�lizes Lawe Street. 

As we explained when we visited City Hall on August 15th, if the Lawe Street truck route 
designa�on is removed Appvion has two alterna�ves.  The next best alterna�ve would be to use 
Richmond Street and College Avenue, resul�ng in all our truck traffic traveling through 
Downtown Appleton.  Alterna�vely, we could u�lize Ballard Road, Northland Avenue, and 441.  
In discussions with our shutle service provider, we have safety concerns with trucks u�lizing the 
inclined ramps and short entry lanes entering and exi�ng 441, especially around peak traffic 
�mes. 

U�lizing 441 would result in an addi�onal 33,792 miles per year and an addi�onal 751 driver 
hours an increase of 97% and 44% respec�vely.  These impacts will result in increased opera�ng 
costs (fuel, wear & tear, �res, vehicle maintenance costs, and driver hours) along with increased 
capital requirements (semi-trucks and trailers).  From an environmental impact perspec�ve, 
based on industry standards for semi-trucks, we would generate an addi�onal 109.4 Metric 
Tons of CO2 (Greenhouse Gas Emissions) annually.   

Our current opera�ng schedule (7 days/24 hours) requires ~16 round trip shutles per day 
between the warehouse and our manufacturing site.  Our facility layout requires the two loops 
around our proper�es (Lawe Street, Meade Street, Wisconsin Avenue, E Hancock Street, E 
Commercial Street, and N Rankin Street) to remain truck routes in order to access our loading 

Exhibit 5



docks and move materials in and out of our buildings.  Therefore, the focus is really on the 0.5-
mile stretch between E Hancock Street and College Avenue. 

A key takeaway from the Community Listening event was the impact to our neighboring 
residents from trucks using Lawe Street at night.  Since the event, our team has been focused 
on what changes we can make that might be a posi�ve for the area residents.  A�er discussing 
op�ons internally and mee�ng with our carrier, VS Midwest, we can commit to eliminate the 
use of our shutle between 10pm and 5am daily.  This would provide for some quiet �me 
overnight and be a benefit to not only those living on Lawe Street, but also the loops around 
our facili�es.  If for some reason, we had to run an emergency shutle we would u�lize an 
alterna�ve route.  However, based on our planning we expect this to be a highly unlikely need. 

Appvion is commited to finding a balanced solu�on for both the residents in the areas 
neighboring our facili�es and our business needs.  Our opera�ons in Appleton provide a 
significant economic benefit to the City of Appleton and the surrounding communi�es.  We 
employ approximately 350 people with wages totaling over $30MM annually.  In addi�on, we 
pay around $400K in Real Estate and purchase more than $10MM from local businesses. 



HWY 41 

RI
CH

MO
ND

 ST

WISCONSIN AV

MIDWAY RD

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

HWY 441 

CALUMET ST

HW
Y 4

7 

EDGEWOOD DR

CTY TK O  

BA
LL

AR
D 

RD

CT
Y T

K A
 

HWY 441 

NORTHLAND AV

JOHN ST

CT
Y T

K E
 

MAIN ST

BADGER AV

ME
MO

RI
AL

 D
R

LA
WE

 ST

NORTH AV

HWY 96 

RA
CI

NE
 R

D

COLLEGE AV

NEWBERRY ST

VALLEY RD

SPENCER ST

RO
EM

ER
 R

D

CAPITOL DR
CO

NK
EY

 ST

ON
EID

A S
T

CT
H 

LP
 

QU
ES

T D
R

CTH KK 

GLENDALE AV

CTY TK CE HY

PLANK RD

PROSPECT AV

APPLE CREEK RD

MILIS DR

EVERETT ST

BLU MND DR

AP
PL

ET
ON

 RD

HY
 44

1

KE
NS

IN
GT

ON
 D

R

ENTERPRISE AV

FRANKLIN ST

VANTAGE DR

EIS
EN

HO
WE

R 
DR

CTY TK CE

CT
Y T

K 
EE

 

ME
AD

E S
T

RANKIN ST

AP
PL

ET
ON

 ST

WAL
TE

R A
V

OU
TA

GA
MI

E S
T

EVERGREEN DR

PO
IN

TE
R 

RD

PE
RK

IN
S S

T

SECOND ST

SOUTH ISLAND ST

PERSHING ST

WH
ITM

AN
 AV LIN

WO
OD

 AV

MA
RS

HA
LL

 R
D

GOODLAND DR
RA

DI
O 

RD

ENDEAVOR DR

DO
UG

LA
S S

T

VENTURE DR

WO
OD

S E
DG

E D
R

GA
TE

WA
Y D

R

FOURTH ST

CTY TK E  

COLLEGE AV

HW
Y 4

41
 

CTY TK E 

HY
 44

1 

HWY 41  

HW
Y 4

41
 

AP
PL

ET
ON

 R
D

BA
LL

AR
D 

RD

HWY 441 

LY
NN

DA
LE

 D
R

MIDWAY RD

PE
RK

IN
S S

T

M
EA

D
E 

ST

H
O

LL
AN

D
 R

D

CAPITOL DR

FR
E

N
C

H
 R

D

M
AS

O
N

 S
T

O
N

EI
D

A 
ST

MANITOWOC RD

TE
LU

LA
H

 A
V

D
R

EW
 S

T

N
O

E 
R

D

C
O

O
P 

R
D

BROADWAY DR

G
IL

LE
TT

 S
T

TAFT AV

PROSPECT AV

MACKVILLE RD

BREWSTER ST

LI
N

W
O

O
D

 A
V

ST
AT

E 
ST

M
AT

TH
IA

S 
ST

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 S

T

JO
H

N
 S

T

BL
U

EM
O

U
N

D
 D

R

ASHBURY DR

FRANCES ST

BE
N

N
ET

T 
ST

ER
B 

ST

PE
R

KI
N

S 
ST

GLENDALE AV

FREMONT ST

O
W

AI
SS

A 
S

T

THIRD ST

JA
C

KS
O

N
 S

T

ATLANTIC ST

FLORIDA AV

AP
PL

ET
O

N
 S

T

NORTH ST

Q
U

AR
R

Y 
R

D

SU
PE

R
IO

R
 S

T

SPRING ST

R
AI

LR
O

AD
 S

T

FOREST ST

KIMBERLY AV

AL
LE

Y 

PACIFIC ST

KENNEDY AV

WILSON AV

SPENCER ST

AIRPORT RD

C
AR

PE
N

TE
R

 S
T

W
EI

M
AR

 S
T

WINNEBAGO ST

APPLE
 CREEK RD

SUMMER ST

KE
N

SI
N

G
TO

N
 D

R

ROELAND AV

LE
E 

ST

SI
D

N
EY

 S
T

C
LA

R
K 

ST

C
LA

R
A 

ST

KE
R

N
AN

 A
V

LOURDES DR

EL
IN

O
R

 S
T

RANDALL AV

PU
R

D
Y PKW

Y

AL
VI

N
 S

T

EMONS RD

GREINER RD

SC
H

AE
FE

R
 S

T

LA
KE

SH
O

R
E 

D
R

JE
FF

ER
SO

N
 S

T

H
O

M
E 

AV

FIRST AV

W
AL

D
EN

 A
V

ELSNER RD

PINE ST

EVERGREEN DR

LI
G

H
TN

IN
G

 D
R

BELL AV

PR
O

VI
D

EN
C

E 
AV

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

ST

FI
D

EL
IS

 S
T

JO
SE

PH
 S

T
BU

C
H

AN
AN

 S
T

EQUESTRIAN TR

SOUTH RIVER ST

MARQUETTE ST

RAIL 
RD

M
AI

N
 S

T

VI
O

LA
 S

T

ST
EA

D
 D

R

N
IC

H
O

LA
S 

ST

COMMERCIAL ST

BONA AV

DEL ROSE LA

ELSIE ST

GLORY LA

M
C

 D
O

N
AL

D
 S

T

R
O

G
ER

 S
T

R
AN

KI
N

 S
T

EU
G

EN
E 

ST

O
R

IO
N

 L
A

JA
M

ES
 S

T

MAPLE ST

IR
M

A 
ST

U
LL

M
AN

 S
T

GLEN ST

PAULINE ST

PI
ER

C
E 

AV

AMELIA ST

RIDGEVIEW DR

WEILAND LA

EISEN
H

O
W

ER
 D

R

M
AD

IS
O

N
 S

T

SPRINGFIELD DR

TH
E

O
D

O
R

E 
ST

HARRISON ST

FA
TI

M
A 

S
T

GRANT ST

BE
R

R
Y 

D
R

HAWES AV

MURRAY AV

CREEK VIEW LA

LORAIN ST

MIDWAY RD

U
N

IO
N

 S
T

WAYFARER LA

GENEVA RD

FOSTER ST

H
AR

R
IM

AN
 S

T

C
H

AI
N

 D
R

APPLE HILL BLVD

KAMPS AV

SUNSET AV

M
O

R
R

IS
O

N
 S

T

LU
TZ

 D
R

MAES AV

HARDING DR

FOURTH ST

AN
N

 S
T

EA
R

L 
S

T

JESKE R
D

SEYMOUR ST

LA
KE

 P
AR

K 
R

D

PACKARD ST

REID DR

SCHAEFER CIR

M
AY

ER
 S

T

WITZKE BLVD

MEADOW GROVE BLVD

R
EX

FO
R

D
 S

T

H
AY

M
EA

D
O

W
 A

V

COOLIDGE AV

KU
R

EY
 D

R

D
U

R
KE

E 
ST

PA
U

L 
D

R

VALLEY RD

SP
R

U
C

E 
ST

LINCOLN ST

BR
IA

R
C

LI
FF

 D
R

EA
ST

 S
T

FU
JI

 D
R

EL
M

 S
T

PR
O

VI
N

C
E 

TE
R

LUCERNE DR

TAYLOR ST

G
R

EE
N

VI
EW

 S
T

W
AL

N
U

T 
ST

C
H

R
IS

TI
N

E 
ST

G
O

SS
 A

V

CROSSING MEADOWS LA

PI
N

EC
R

ES
T 

BL
VD

CHARLES ST

HOOVER AV

ROBERTS AV

BI
R

C
H

W
O

O
D

 A
V

ST
O

N
YB

R
O

O
K 

R
D

MITCHELL AV

RANDALL ST

OKLAHOMA ST

LAWRENCE ST

RIVER RD

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 D
R

AL
EX

AN
D

ER
 S

T
FO

U
N

TA
IN

 A
V

NORDALE DR

W
H

IT
N

EY
 D

R

R
O

SE
BU

D
 L

A

GLENHURST LA

TR
I-P

AR
K 

W
AY

CEDAR ST

W
H

IT
E 

H
AW

K 
D

R

ED
G

EW
O

O
D

 A
V

GROVE ST

MC ARTHUR ST

H
AR

O
LD

 D
R

H
O

R
IZ

O
N

 D
R

TILLMAN ST

FI
EL

D
VI

EW
 D

R

GRAND CHUTE BLVD

KAY ST

PARKWAY BLVD

WITTMANN DR

SANDY'S LA

PARK RIDGE AV

LI
N

D
A 

AV

BARLEY WAY

DRAKE LA

ROGERS AV

STARVIEW DR

PARK HILLS DR

PLANK RD

WERNER RD

H
IN

E 
ST

PERSHING DR

G
LA

D
YS

 A
V

LO
ND

ON
 S

T

SCHABO RD

SENECA DR

LA
KE

VI
EW

 L
A

C
AR

LE
TO

N
 A

V

GARNET DR

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

FA
IR

 S
T

GREENLEAF DR
GREEN B

AY
 R

D

EL
BE

R
G

 A
V

M
ID

PA
R

K 
D

R

O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 S
T

BA
R

BA
R

A 
AV

FRANKLIN ST

LE
M

IN
W

AH
 S

T

SYLVAN AV

HOMESTEAD DR

HIGHVIEW DR

TA
H

O
E 

LA

H
ED

G
ER

O
W

 D
R

H
O

LI
D

AY
 D

R

H
AL

L 
AV

HEARTHSTONE DR

LI
SA

 S
T

LA
W

E 
ST

ALTON ST

G
M

EI
N

ER
 R

DG
EO

R
G

E ST

RUSSET CT

HERITAGE AV

W
IN

D
C

R
O

SS D
R

WATER ST

HULKE DR

H
IC

KO
R

Y 
FA

R
M

 L
A

MICHIGAN ST

KNOLL
W

OOD LA

VALLEY LA

CANARY ST

FULCER AV

LO
C

U
ST

 S
T

GREENFIELD ST

DIETZEN DR

JO
H

AN
N

 D
R

PERSHING ST

WYNDMERE DR

AL
IC

IA
 D

R

LI
N

D
A 

ST

TIBU
R

O
N

 LA

AD
AM

S 
ST

SHEA ST

KE
R

R
Y 

LA

CIRCLE ST

WAGON WHEEL DR

H
IL

LT
O

P 
D

R

AL
C

AN
 D

R

KU
R

T 
AV

JONATHON DR

CARRINGTON LA

D
U

N
N

IN
G

 S
T

BA
R

TL
EI

N
 C

T

SU
N

SE
T 

LA

LYDIA LA

JEAN ST

MOONFLOWER DR

SUNSET DR

BEDFORD LA

C
AR

TE
R

 C
T

AN
D

R
EW

 D
R

PAR
KVIEW

 D
R

ER
IC

 D
R

CLOVERDALE DR

R
AC

IN
E 

ST

LINDBERGH ST

C
O

VE
N

AN
T 

LA

BE
C

K 
ST

HIAWATHA DR

ROSELAWN DR

BANTA CT

TW
EL

VE
 C

O
R

N
ER

S 
R

D

BO
B-

O
-L

IN
K 

LA

LI
LA

S 
D

R

LOCHBUR LA

JANET LA

HARRIS ST

SUNRISE D
R

SO
U

TH
W

O
O

D
 D

R

HONEYSUCKLE LA

EIGHTH ST

TE
R

R
I L

A

BA
Y 

S
T

LE
O

N
A 

ST

PA
TR

IC
K 

ST

LA
VE

N
D

ER
 L

A

FE
R

N
M

EA
D

O
W

 D
R

KA
R

LY
N

 S
T

TIMBERLINE DR

W
EST AV

FALLCREEK LA

JO
R

D
AN

 S
T

WOODLAND AV

SO
LA

R
 C

IR

TWIN WILLOWS DR

C
R

ES
TV

IE
W

 D
R

APPLESEED DR

APPLEVIEW DR

C
H

ER
R

YVALE AV

BO
U

TE
N

 S
T

LORAIN CT

OFFICE CT

R
O

SE
M

AR
Y 

D
R

M
AL

O
A 

ST

C
LO

VE
R

 L
A

ZINNIA DR

H
AW

TH
O

R
N

E 
D

R

M
IS

SI
O

N
 S

T

WEILAND AV

BRAEBURN DR

W
EI

M
AR

 C
T

ALICE ST

OVERLAND RD

SM
O

KE
TR

EE
 P

AS
S

OMEGA DR

SY
ST

EM
S 

D
R

ST
O

R
Y 

ST

SO
LI

TU
D

E 
LA

PATS DR

R
O

SE
LY

N
 C

T

STROEBE RD

HIGHLAND AV

ST
EE

PL
E 

D
R

LYNCH AV

BYRD ST

M
AT

TH
EW

 S
T

MEMORY LA

ELMVIEW DR

JA
SO

N
 D

R

FRONT ST

BE
R

R
YF

IE
LD

 L
A

R
EB

EC
C

A 
LA

WINWOOD DR

SERVICE RD

C
H

R
IS

TO
PH

ER
 L

A

C
AM

BR
ID

G
E D

R

REEVE ST

VINE ST

ROSE TREE DR

WINDFIELD PL

LARKSPUR DR

DOWNS RDG

RIV
ER D

R

W
IN

D
M

IL
L 

D
R

SP
EE

L 
SC

H
O

O
L 

R
D

LI
LL

IA
N

 C
T

MELODY LA

H
EM

LO
C

K 
LA

DIANE LA

HEATHER AV

JARDIN ST

EAGLE FLATS PKWY

FORKIN ST

D
EE

R
FI

EL
D

 A
V

M
EL

M
AR

 C
T

LAYTON AV

SU
N

D
O

W
N

 L
A

ACORN CT

EDWARD ST

PARIS WAY

R
EI

LA
N

D
 R

D

FI
ES

TA
 D

R

ALBERT WAY

MELROSE AV

SUNNYVIEW RD

M
IL

KY
 W

AY

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 S

T

C
AT

H
ER

IN
E 

ST

NEWBERRY ST

BENVALLEY DR

BENT OAK LA

BENTON DR

AU
R

O
R

A 
D

R
LONGVIEW DR

M
EA

D
O

W
VI

EW
 D

R

HIGHWAY DR

HAZELNUT LA

PETER ST

GREENBRIER DR

WINROWE DR

M
EA

D
O

W
VI

EW
 L

A

M
U

EL
LE

R
 S

T

BA
R

TE
LL

 D
R

LE
H

M
AN

N
 L

A

SI
EN

NA
 W

AY

M
IL

LE
R

 C
T

MOON BEAM TR

FO
X 

PI
N

E 
LA

PEPPERCORN DR

FERNWOOD LA

SUNNYVIEW CIR

SN
AP

D
R

AG
O

N
 L

A

D
ER

KS
 D

R

EV
ER

GRE
EN

 L
A

H
EL

EN
 S

T

JO
N

SC
H

 D
R

KE
ST

IN
G

 C
T

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 D
R

ASSOCIATION DR

TY
LE

R
 D

R

BROWNING ST

TALLG
R

ASS D
R

BU
D

 D
R

TO
N

KA
 S

T

LORNA LA

C
LO

U
D

VI
EW

 D
R

MONTANA AV

LAKE PARK XING

ST
IL

LM
EA

D
O

W
 L

A

ER
IN

 D
R

R
IC

H
AR

D
 D

R

JU
AN

IT
A 

LA

C
IR

C
LE

 D
R

MATHISON RD

BL
O

SS
O

M
 D

R

BELLEVUE PL

PO
PL

AR
 L

A

PARKSIDE BLVD

SK
YL

AR
K 

D
R WHITTIER DR

AN
G

EL
A 

D
R

G
R

AN
D

 V
IE

W
 R

D

M
C

 IN
TO

SH
 D

R

CALM
ES DR

STARGAZE DR

SCHINDLER PL

AL
EX

 D
R

FA
IR

VI
EW

 S
T

KUBORN AV

G
R

EEN
 G

R
O

VE R
D

M
AR

C
O

S 
LA

HILLOCK CT

BR
O

O
KS

H
IR

E 
D

R

SH
AW

N
EE LA

R
O

SE
W

O
O

D
 D

R

POLLYWOG WAY

SKYWAY LA

DAISY CT

CLEARFIELD LA

WINDTREE DR

W
AY

SI
D

E 
LA

W
H

IP
-P

O
O

R
-W

IL
L 

LA

FO
R

D
 S

T

EL
M

W
O

O
D

 C
T

TUSCANY WAY

M
AY

FA
IR

 D
R

O
AK

W
O

O
D

 C
T

FOXMOOR LA

M
O

H
AW

K 
D

R

INCLINE WAY

W
IN

DW
AR

D 
LA

FIFTH ST

C
EN

TE
R

 S
T

NOELLE LA

SHADE TREE LA

SO
NG

BI
RD

 L
A

SHOSHONE DR

SHASTA LA

WENTWORTH LA

DEERVIEW DR

ST
AR

 R
ID

G
E 

LA

C
H

AP
PE

LL
 D

R

BOBBY CT

PO
PP

 L
A

PRAIRIE CT

NORFOLK PL

BA
LL

AR
D

 R
D

RUSTIC RD

JA
D

E 
D

R

D
O

R
IS

 L
A

W
EL

C
O

M
E 

C
IR

TOWNE LAKES CIR

C
O

BB
LE

ST
O

N
E 

LA

CANVASBACK LA

FO
X 

PT
 D

R

RAMBLING ROSE DR

MAYFIELD DR

FIFTEENTH ST

H
AR

R
IE

T 
ST

VALLEY VIEW LA

C
AR

R
IA

G
E 

LA

SU
M

M
IT

 S
T

G
AG

E 
ST

BALDWIN CT

HIETPAS ST

WEST CT

SC
H

U
H

 R
D

EMMERS DR

G
R

EV
ES

 C
T

KI
R

KL
AN

D
 C

T

SU
M

M
ER

SE
T 

D
R

GAZEBO HILL RD
SA

M
PS

O
N

 S
T

LA
N

SE
R

 L
A

JUNIPER LA

FA
IR

FI
EL

D
 C

T

PE
AC

H
 T

R
EE

 L
A

ROBIN WAY

R
IV

ER
VI

EW
 L

A

WASHINGTON ST

KA
SP

ER
 D

R

VERMONT AV

BE
EC

H
W

O
O

D
 C

T

R
AM

LE
N

 C
T

SUNDANCE DR

RIDGE HAVEN LA

HANCOCK ST

LA
U

R
IE

 S
T

H
IL

LW
O

O
D

 C
T

JOHNSTON ST

AP
PL

EW
O

O
D

 D
R

D
EL

LW
O

O
D

 S
T

O
PP

O
R

TU
N

IT
Y 

W
AY

AN
TO

N
 C

T

ORCHARD BLOSSOM DR

SU
M

M
ER

LA
N

D
 D

R

M
AR

Y 
ST

RACHEL LA
KAYLEE LA

H
U

C
KL

EB
ER

R
Y 

LA

ST
AR

 P
O

IN
T 

LA

N
O

R
TH

 R
ID

G
E C

T

GLEN CREEK PL

CORRIDOR DR

PEARL DR

SAN
C

TU
AR

Y D
R

VILLA DR

H
EA

D
W

AL
L 

C
IR

C
O

N
N

EL
L 

ST

BLUEBIRD LA

CELTIC XING

R
ID

G
EW

O
O

D
 C

T

W
H

IT
E 

BI
R

C
H

 L
A

PALISADES DR

PLAN
K C

IR

M
O

N
R

O
E 

ST

STRATFORD LA

PARKSIDE CT

W
H

EA
TF

IE
LD

 D
R

ROYAL CT

PONDVIEW CT

MEADOWBROOK LA

LESTER LA

BR
O

O
KD

AL
E 

C
T

BL
U

ER
ID

G
E 

D
R

FI
ES

TA
 C

T

VALERIE DR

PARTRIDGE CT

GARDEN CT

H
O

M
ES

TE
AD

 T
R

SC
AR

LE
T 

O
AK

 L
A

ESTHER ST

C
AR

VE
R

 L
A

PH
EA

SA
NT

 C
T

C
O

TT
ER

 S
T

C
H

ER
R

Y 
C

T

PHILIP LA

U
N

N
AM

ED
 R

D

SOUTH ST

ALDER WAY

M
O

NT
CL

AI
RE

 C
T

PE
AR

L 
ES

SE
N

C
E 

ST

KI
N

G
 C

T

TA
N

N
EN

BA
U

M
 T

R

BR
EN

TW
O

O
D

 L
A

CRANBERRY DR

VERNA RD

TRACY CT

CALUMET ST

TR
AILW

AY LA

LITTLE RANCH RD

GOLDEN CT

FR
E

D
ER

IC
K 

ST

MOORPARK AV

G
AR

YS
 L

A

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E 
C

T

G
AR

N
ET

 C
T

MC KINLEY ST

W
IN

ES
AP

 D
R

ZI
EG

LE
R

 C
T

W
AY

M
AN

 C
T

AS
TO

R
 L

A

GREEN MEADOW DR

D
AV

ID
 S

T

SU
M

AC
 L

A

BO
YD

 C
T

FO
XG

LO
VE LA

FIRST ST

H
IC

KO
R

Y LA

SO
M

M
ER

S D
R

W
IN

O
N

A 
W

AY

REGAL TER

PO
TA

TO
 P

T 
R

D

APPALOOSA CT

JACKMAN ST

PL
AT

EA
U

 S
T

O
R

C
H

AR
D

 D
R

DEWEY ST

PALOMA CT

BI
R

D
S 

N
ES

T 
C

T

MARNIE LA

JA
R

C
H

O
W

 S
T

W
IL

SO
N

 C
T

KN
O

ED
LER

 ST

H
IL

LC
R

ES
T 

D
R

HIGHLAND PARK AV

MARION ST

BOLDT WAY

ST
AM

ES
 D

R

M
AG

N
O

LI
A 

C
T

RIVERVIEW CT

FO
X 

ST

FO
ST

E
R

 C
T

SH
AR

O
N

 S
T

C
O

N
N

IE
'S

 C
T

ARBOR LA

W
IL

BU
R

 S
T

C
ATTAIL C

T

CORAL CT

G
U

LL
W

IN
G

 C
T

LO
N

G
W

O
O

D
 L

A

SILVER SPUR LA

C
LO

U
D

VI
EW

 C
T

G
IL

M
O

R
E 

AL
LE

Y 

WILDPLUM CT

SELMA CT

R
O

SE
D

AL
E 

LA

BUCK ALLEY 

O
AK

D
AL

E 
LA

BRADFORD AV

CAMEO CT

PH
LO

X 
D

R

LYNNDALE CT

C
AM

EL
O

T 
C

T

AL
LE

N
 S

T

H
ER

ITAG
E C

T

ES
TA

TE
 D

R

SETTLERS CT

FLORAL DR

PA
TR

IC
IA

 L
A

AYKEN
S ST

PERSHING ST

LAYTON AV

EL
M

 S
T

FA
IR

 S
T

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 S

T

PACKARD ST

VI
O

LA
 S

T

FRANKLIN ST

FOURTH ST

U
LL

M
AN

 S
T

PACIFIC ST

G
IL

LE
TT

 S
T

EVERGREEN DR

D
U

R
KE

E 
ST

MARQUETTE ST

SENECA DR

SERVICE RD

EIGHTH ST

HOOVER AV

SU
M

M
IT

 S
T

NEWBERRY ST

M
AI

N
 S

T
COMMERCIAL ST

WASHINGTON ST

EL
M

 S
T

GLENDALE AV

JO
SE

PH
 S

T

LA
W

E 
ST

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 S
T

LO
C

U
ST

 S
T

U
N

IVER
SITY D

R

LE
E 

ST

BI
R

C
H

W
O

O
D

 A
V

KE
R

N
AN

 A
V

EI
SE

N
H

O
W

ER
 D

R

SUNSET AV

HARRIS ST

THIRD ST

GRANT ST

G
LA

D
YS

 A
V

CIRCLE ST

LINDBERGH ST

M
AS

O
N

 S
T

COOLIDGE AV

LINDBERGH ST

AL
VI

N
 S

T

LIN
DA AV

EA
ST

 S
T

MARQUETTE ST

G
IL

LE
TT

 S
T

SUMMER ST

ST
O

R
Y 

ST

LAWRENCE ST

FLORIDA AV

O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 S
T

C
O

VE
N

AN
T 

LA

HARDING DR

EVERGREEN DR

ALLEY 

PARKWAY BLVD

WASHINGTON ST

KE
R

N
AN

 A
V

M
C

 D
O

N
AL

D
 S

T

D
O

U
G

LA
S 

ST

PLANK RD

KAMPS AV

LO
C

U
ST

 S
T

LO
C

U
ST

 S
T

GLENDALE AV

FR
E

N
C

H
 R

D

SERVICE RD

H
AR

R
IM

AN
 S

T

ALLEY 

M
EA

D
E 

ST

SYLVAN AV

LA
W

E 
ST

MITCHELL AV

HIGHVIEW DR

M
O

R
R

IS
O

N
 S

T

ROBERTS AV

HIAWATHA DR

R
AN

KI
N

 S
T

FI
D

EL
IS

 S
T

M
ID

PA
R

K 
D

R

FRANCES ST

MC KINLEY ST

BROADWAY DR

HIAWATHA DR

SU
M

M
IT

 S
T

SC
H

AE
FE

R
 S

T

FRANKLIN ST

FIRST AV

U
N

IO
N

 S
T

BL
U

EM
O

U
N

D
 D

R

PERSHING ST

RANDALL ST

AL
LE

Y 

O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 S
T

WITTMANN DR

W
AL

D
EN

 A
V

G
LA

D
YS

 A
V

WEILAND AV

LI
LA

S 
D

R

CHARLES ST

W
EI

M
AR

 S
T

KAMPS AV

ST
O

R
Y 

ST

PARKWAY BLVD

LONGVIEW DR

FIRST AV

MARQUETTE ST

JAMES ST

HARRIS ST

SU
PE

R
IO

R
 S

T

O
U

TA
G

AM
IE

 S
T

PLANK RD

C
LA

R
K 

ST

SPRING ST

City of Appleton
Street

Truck Route

City Limits

Date: 8/23/2021

Exhibit 6



Page 1 of 1 
https://cityofappleton-my.sharepoint.com/personal/blockdl_appleton_org/Documents/Municipal Services Committee/2023/09/2023.09.25/Arnold St (post 6-month trial).docx 

 
 
 
To: Municipal Services Committee 
From: Eric Lom, City Traffic Engineer 
Date: September 18, 2023 
Re: Proposed parking change on Arnold Street (700E) 
 Follow-Up to Evaluation Period 
 
 
In response to concerns raised by residents, the City’s Traffic Section assessed the possibility of removing the existing 
two-hour parking restriction (7 a.m. to 5 p.m. except Sat/Sun/Hol) on both sides of Arnold Street, from Lawe Street 
to Meade Street.  Many of the Arnold Street residents felt that the restriction was no longer needed. 
 
Property owners on this block were surveyed by mail and, based on the feedback received, the existing two-hour 
parking restriction was removed for an evaluation period. 
 
We have not received any feedback from the community, and the lack of the two-hour restriction has not raised any 
concerns by DPW staff.  Based on this, we recommend the changes be made permanent. 
 
 
To accomplish this, the following ordinance action is required: 
 

1. Repeal Ord. 20-03:  “Parking be restricted to two hours from 7:00m a.m. to 5:00 p.m., except 
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays, on Arnold Street from Lawe Street to Meade Street.” 

“. . .   meeting community needs . . .  enhancing quality of life.”  
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division – Traffic Section 
2625 E. Glendale Avenue 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL  (920) 832-5580 
FAX  (920) 832-5570 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_09-11-23 Meeting Minutes
	0002_1_2023.09.20_MSC Lawe Street Truck Route Memo
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	Engineering Division
	100 North Appleton Street



	0002_2_Lawe Street Attachments
	0003_1_Arnold St (post 6-month trial)
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	Engineering Division – Traffic Section
	2625 E. Glendale Avenue






